Children, Young People and Education Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 1 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru
National

Meeting date:
Assembly for
Wednesday, 20 May 2015 Wales

Meeting time: V
09.15

For further information please contact:
Marc Wyn Jones

Committee Clerk

0300 200 6565

SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales

Agenda

09.15 - 09.30 - Private pre-meeting

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09.30)

2 Inquiry into Supply Teaching - Evidence session 10 (09.30 - 10.30)
(Pages 1 - 18)

Welsh Government

CYPE(4)-15-15 - Paper 1

Huw Lewis AM, Minister for Education and Skills

Brett Pugh, Group Director-School Standards & Workforce Group

Zenny Saunders, Head of Strategy and Workforce Unit

3 Papers to note

Inquiry into Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services - Letter from the Minister
for Health and Social Services (10.30) (Pages 19 - 22)
CYPE(4)-15-15 - Paper to note 2



4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(ix) to resolve to exclude the
public from the meeting for the remainder of the meeting

5 Inquiry into Supply Teaching - discussion on evidence received (10.30
- 11.00)

6 Inquiry into Child and Adolescent Mental Health - Next Steps (11.00 -
11.30)



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



National Assembly for Wales

Children, Young People and Education Committee
CYPE(4)-15-15 - Paper 1

Inquiry into Supply Teaching

Evidence from : Welsh Government

Introduction

1.

The purpose of this paper is to provide written evidence on supply
teaching in Wales to inform the Children, Young People & Education
Committee’s ‘Inquiry into Supply Teaching’. The paper is structured to
correspond with the principal areas of the Committee’s inquiry.

It is generally accepted that the quality of teachers is the single most
important factor that has the greatest impact on improving learner
outcomes. In seeking to raise standards across our education system in
Wales it follows that all teachers who work with learners in our schools,
irrespective of the nature of their deployment, have an important role to

play.

Supply teachers form a significant and important part of the teacher
workforce in Wales and, like all teachers, it is necessary to ensure they
have the appropriate skills to provide high quality teaching. They perform
a particularly important role in maintaining continuity of learning during
periods of teacher absence, both short and long term.

The Welsh Government is focussed on ensuring that there is a high quality
of supply teachers who are effectively utilised to supporting the education
of our young people in the most cost effective manner.

Background

5.

6.

Over the past 2 years, supply teaching in Wales has been referenced in
the following three reports:
a. The Impact of Teacher Absence, Estyn, September 2013;
b. Covering Teacher Absence, Wales Audit Office, September
2013; and
c. Covering Teachers Absence, Public Accounts Committee, May
2014

All three reports provided a helpful and comprehensive analysis of supply
teaching in Wales and address a number of issues currently being
reviewed by the Children, Young People & Education Committee. Since
their publication the Welsh Government has taken a number of proactive
steps to address their various recommendations including the
development of Effective Management of School Workforce Attendance
guidance document to be published in July 2015.

Pack Page 11



7. The guidance document is being drafted in conjunction with local authority
officials with engagement from key stakeholders from the sector. The
guidance will provide a framework to improve the cover of lessons to
minimise disruption to children’s learning; ensure value for money for
education; and to assist in reducing teacher absence.

8. The guidance will be disseminated to all schools, local authority, consortia
and Welsh Government officials to ensure that all partners understand
their roles and responsibilities in relation to ensuring the effective cover of
lessons. The guidance will address a number of recommendations set out
in the reports published by Estyn, WAO and the Public Accounts
Committee. In addition to setting out the roles and responsibilities of all
key stakeholders, the document will include model policies, examples of
best practice and suitable resources (for example, an outline induction
handbook) for schools.

Prevalence and use of supply teachers

9. Current numbers of supply teachers registered in Wales have remained
fairly static over a five year period. Data from the Education Workforce
Council (EWC) shows that the figure was just over 5000 in 2009 and was
around 4800 in December 2014. Teachers are required to update their
own data if their employment status changes, however the EWC does not
proactively engage with teachers to ensure that this is the case.

10. The employment of supply teachers is governed by a combination of UK
Employment law (including the Temporary Workers Directive) and the
School Teachers Pay and Conditions document. School teachers’ pay
and conditions have not been devolved and remain the responsibility of
the Department for Education.

11.Ultimately it is the duty of individual head teachers, working with their
Governing Body and wider school team, to determine the best way to
manage absences and provide cover in their schools.

12.The Wales Audit Office and Estyn Reports estimate that just under 10% of
all lessons were covered by staff that are not the usual teacher. There are
a range of staff who may cover for a teachers’ absence including cover
supervisors, teaching assistants/ higher level teaching assistance or
supply teachers. Cover is required for both foreseen (training, peer to peer
support, maternity/paternity leave) and unforeseen absences (sickness,
grievance absence).

13.The Estyn, WAO and PAC Reports all highlighted the importance of
utilising data, notably on teacher absence rates, to reduce the number of
lessons requiring cover.

14.1t is essential that teachers engage in ongoing professional learning to

maintain and develop the quality and effectiveness of their professional
practice. As in many other professions, sharing professional practice is

Pack Page 12



often the most effective means of supporting and improving practice. This
can often mean teachers observing the practice of others and then
applying what they have learnt to their own practice. In these situations
some absence from the classroom will be inevitable but it should always
result from an assessment of the longer term benefits of improving
practice set against the short term impact on continuity of learning.

15.The Welsh Government has committed to a number of initiatives to
improve the monitoring of teacher absence from the classroom. These
include:

The development of the Effective Management of School Workforce
Attendance guidance which will set out the roles and responsibilities of
local authorities, consortia and the Welsh Government in relation to
school data collection, dissemination and analysis. It will also set out
the responsibilities for head teachers and governors in providing data
and responding to issues;

The guidance will also include best practice approaches that should be
considered when organising training and development opportunities
and events for teachers. This will include ensuring the Welsh
Government and its partners consider the range of delivery options
when providing learning opportunities to the school workforce to ensure
that the impact of teacher absence from the classroom forms part of
the decision making process.

The commitment to publish teacher absence data annually at a local
authority level to help enable any potential issues or trends to be
identified. This data will be available to form part of the people
management monitoring, reviewing and challenge process within local
authorities and consortia;

The publication, in April 2015, of the National Model for Regional
Working — Revitalising People Management in Schools. This provides
a people management framework for the delivery of specialist HR
functions. This document underlines the responsibilities on schools,
local authorities and consortia including the collection, analysis and
reporting on data to improve school performance;

Introduction of regulations for School Development Plan (SDPs).
When formulating the SDP a school should consider a range of
quantitative and qualitative performance data including teacher
absence information. The SDP will provide a focus for engagement
within schools and challenge advisers will advise and support schools
in identifying and implementing the actions necessary to bring about
improvements on a range of data, including teacher absence data; and
Guidance to accompany the SDP regulations includes an expectation
that, when schools set out their approach to the professional learning
of their staff, they give consideration to adopting strategies that
minimise the negative impact of teachers’ absence from the classroom
on learner progress. This should be balanced with the need to provide
high-quality professional learning experiences and schools will need to
carefully assess the impact of their provision so they are confident they
achieve the optimum balance.

Pack Page 13



The impact on the outcomes for pupils as a result of the use of supply
teachers

16.In 2013 Estyn conducted a thematic review on the impact of teacher

absence. The resultant report outlined in detail the impact on the
outcomes for pupils as a result of teacher absence from the classroom.

17.Estyn made a number of recommendations for schools, local authorities

and consortia. In addition to highlighting these recommendations to the
relevant bodies the Welsh Government are developing Effective
Management of School Workforce Attendance guidance to be published
in the summer term. This document will reflect the good practice
highlighted in the Estyn, WAO and PAC reports and include a range of
resources (model policies, frameworks and tools) for schools to adapt and
implement to improve the quality, whilst reducing the quantity, of
classroom cover.

18.The Welsh Government will be making a request to Estyn for a further

thematic review to be undertaken, in 2016/17, on cover arrangements and
to assess the effectiveness of the guidance. This will provide the
opportunity for the new guidance to be fully developed and embedded for
a whole academic year before the study takes place.

Professional Learning

19.The New Deal for the Education Workforce offers all education

practitioners, including supply teachers, in Wales an entitlement to access
world class professional learning opportunities to develop their practice
throughout their career. Underpinning the New Deal is embedding
professional learning activities within schools but also providing access to
learning opportunities through online professional learning materials and
resources. This provides a more flexible and effective approach for all
teachers to develop and will contribute to improving teacher standards
whilst reducing teacher absence from the classroom for training purposes.

20. Through the School Development Plans, schools are now required to set

21

out detail of the schools’ provision for addressing the professional learning
needs of all staff, including staff temporarily placed at the school, which
will include short and long term supply teachers.

.New Directions, who have recently been awarded the Framework

Agreement for the Provision of Supply Teachers (see para. 30), are
committed to delivering relevant training and professional learning. New
Directions provides for training on safeguarding, classroom management
and conflict and behaviour management, through the Team Teach
programmes to all their supply teachers.

Performance Management

22.Revised Appraisal Regulations were introduced in 2011 which covered

the Performance Management (PM) of teachers and head teachers. The

Pack Page 14



regulations also covered unattached teachers which generally include
teachers employed centrally by local authorities..

23.The revised regulations also included provision for the performance
management of teachers temporarily placed in a school for a term or
more. Previously, the minimum period was one year. This allows a larger
number of supply teachers carrying out long term supply to come within
the scope of the regulations and therefore subject to a school’s PM policy.

24.The regulations do not apply to teachers on short term contracts of less
than one term. This was a reflection of the practical difficulties in
administering a PM cycle over such a short period of time.

25.However, whilst not subject to regulations, it is still incumbent on schools
to effectively monitor and manage the performance of any staff working in
the school, whatever the length of their employment.

26.New Directions, who have recently been awarded the Framework
Agreement for the Provision of Supply Teachers (see para. 30), are
committed to providing performance management to all their supply
teachers.

The role of local authorities and regional consortia

27.The National Model for Regional Working — Revitalising People
Management in Schools, published in April 2015, provides a people
management framework for the delivery of specialist HR functions. This
document builds on the requirements set out in the National Model for
Regional Working (Guidance document 126/2014). The document sets
out the requirement for consortia business plans to detail how local
authority HR support will be provided to schools. It also outlines the
responsibilities of local authorities and consortia in delivering HR support
and services. The document explicitly references the requirement for
local authorities to deliver HR support and advisory services to schools
under a Service Level Agreement. The guidance sets out the
requirement for schools, and governing bodies, to take part in training
and development programmes to assist them to meet their people
management responsibilities.

28.Business plans in relation to HR provision for schools will be monitored
through the annual Ministerial review and challenge events with each
consortium. Where HR issues have an adverse effect on school
improvement we will collectively analyse causes and identify suitable
interventions.

29. Effective Management of School Workforce Attendance will clearly set
out the roles and responsibilities of local authorities and consortia in
relation to the effective cover of lessons, supply teachers and supply
agencies.

Pack Page 15



Supply Agencies and Quality Assurance

30. The National Procurement Service (NPS) developed and awarded a
framework agreement for a Managed Service for the provision of Agency
Workers on 8 April 2015, including supply teachers. The agreement was
awarded by the NPS on behalf of the Welsh Public Sector, including all
22 Local Authorities, and is for a period of three years, with an option to
extend for a further 12 months. The successful single supplier award on
Lot 3 — Education was given to New Directions Education Limited. During
the tender development the NPS engaged with the Department for
Education and Skills, which helped to strengthen the specification and
technical award criteria around such issues as Professional Training and
Learning. The NPS also engaged with representatives of Welsh Local
Authorities.

31.Lot 3 will commence on 15t August 2015, in readiness for the new
academic year. Until this time the existing All Wales framework with New
Directions (as let by Cardiff City Council in 2012) will continue to run.

32.All 22 Local Authorities have signed up to use the Framework
Agreements that the NPS put in place, and as such they will expect their
schools to use the framework to meet their supply teacher requirement.
However, schools are free to use any method of supply to cover their
lessons.

33. The spend under the existing All Wales framework has continued to grow
annually, indicating that most framework customers are using the
framework provider to meet this requirement (where the requirement
exists). Outside of the framework, it is believed that schools continue to
use a range of other suppliers. There are approximately 50 other
teaching supply agencies currently operating in Wales

34.1n 2007, the Welsh Assembly Government introduced the Quality Mark
Wales (QMW), a voluntary scheme designed to promote the safe
recruitment of supply teachers into Welsh Schools. The Recruitment and
Employment Confederation (REC), a recognised umbrella body for the
recruitment industry, was awarded the contract and managed the
scheme on behalf of the Welsh Assembly Government from April 2007.
The scheme cost just over £216,000 over a four year period.

35.During the summer of 2010, a review of the scheme was undertaken by
officials who sought the views of supply agencies, teacher unions and
other partners as to the impact that the quality mark had made in relation
to its stated aims.

36. The evidence gathered by the critical analysis indicated that the scheme
was limited in its ability to influence the recruitment and management
practices of all supply agencies. Officials set out their concerns relating
to the current and future effectiveness of the scheme, its failure to
demonstrate value for money, and the limited support it had gained from

Pack Page 16



supply agencies, teachers, and teacher unions. There was little evidence
to suggest that as a result of the introduction of the QMW scheme,
supply agencies in Wales had significantly altered the way they did
business (in particular, in relation to pay and conditions issues).

37.The then Minister, on the basis of the review, decided in December 2010
that the scheme would not continue beyond March 2011.

38.REC has launched the Audited Education scheme, a new standard for
recruitment in education which builds on the legacy of the Quality Mark,
which supply agencies in Wales can apply for.

39.The guidance document will set out roles and responsibilities for supply
agencies, including an outline of the minimum standards that schools
should look for when selecting an Agency.

Shortage of supply teachers in some subjects (including Welsh medium)

40.The Welsh Government does not control the composition of the supply
teacher workforce as it is largely self-selecting and rarely constant.
Through Initial Teacher Education and Training (ITET) intakes, the Welsh
Government takes account of the teaching population as a whole.

41.A Teacher Planning and Supply Model (TPSM) is used as a workforce
planning tool to gauge numbers of new entrants to ITET programmes in
Wales. Itis used as a basis to calculate the number of teachers required
to maintain the required levels in Wales. The TPSM has two elements:
firstly a Desired Stock Model, which projects the number of teachers
required, based on pupil projections and current pupil-teacher ratios; and
secondly a Teacher Supply Model, which projects the number of in-
service teachers and subsequent over/under supply of teachers, given
flows in and out of the service. These cover the in-flow of newly qualified
teachers and re-entrants to teaching in Wales, and the out-flow due to
retirements and other leavers.

42.To address priority recruitment areas, the Welsh Government will offer
financial incentives in academic year 2015/16 to support initial teacher
training in key subject areas as follows. Please note that the figures
included in brackets in the attached table denote the total support
payable to the student, which is incentives value plus the tuition fee grant

support.
First degree High priority Medium All other main Primary supplement
g—anILc(jaetllf])tn of subjects s%\tls % English, Welsh, mathematics and
== subjecls _I—rimar science only (degree subject
Mathematics, | Modern (high level _specialism to raise standards at
physics ’ languages support only) primary in numeracy and literacy and
chemistry, ICT (computer support sciences)
Welsh sciences)

Pack Page 17




Tst £20,000 £15,000 £3,000 £3,000
(£25,190) |  (£20,190) (£8,190)
21 £10,000 £6,000 £0 £0
(£15,190) £11.190)
£6,000 £0 £0 £0
22 (£11,190)

43.The Welsh Language Sabbatical Scheme provides teachers, including
supply teachers, with the opportunity to improve their Welsh-language
skills in an environment outside of their schools. The aim of the training is
to improve the language skills of practitioners in the Welsh-medium
sector, in support of the Literacy agenda; and to provide training for
practitioners in the English-medium sector in order to deliver the Welsh
second language curriculum in schools.

Pack Page 18




CYPE(4)-15-15 - Paper to Note 2

Agend@,l
Mark Drakeford AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol JA

Minister for Health and Social Services

Llywodraeth Cymru

Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref MD/01455/15

Ann Jones AM

Chair

Children, Young People and Education Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

‘Do Ana,

Thank you for your letter of 6 May regarding work the Committee intends to undertake into
prescribing practice and the availability of primary care services for young people
experiencing mental ill-health.

IS May 2015

The attached paper provides an update on the Welsh Government’s commission of work to
review prescribing activity in children from Swansea University. | will of course be happy to
make the final reports available to the committee following receipt, and understand the
University may decide to publish the work in a peer reviewed journal to contribute to wider
understanding of this important issue. The paper also provides an update on our work to
improve data collection around access to primary care by children and young people.

| also undertook to keep the Committee updated on activity arising from the CAMHS service
change and improvement programme, following its launch on 26 February. You will have
received (by e-mail on 1 May) the conference report from Public Health Wales and noted
that a follow-up conference is planned for 22 June. In advance of that | wanted to inform
you of the progress being made, which is also included in the attached paper.

I hope you will agree that there is a considerable amount of work now underway to move
CAMHS forward and will join me in welcoming the progress being made. My ultimate aim is
that CAMHS will become an exemplar in making prudent healthcare happen by making the
most effective use of all skills and resources.

(Dt o Shos,

Mok

Mark Drakeford AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0300 0603300
Caerdydd - Cardiff Ltinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford @wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchq:(g@%)Page 19 Printed on 100% recycled paper



Prescribing

The Welsh Government has commissioned Swansea University to review
prescribing practice for under 18 year olds. The work will be taken forward in two
phases. Phase one, which has already commenced, comprises a review of ADHD
medication and antidepressants. The final report is expected at the end of May.
Phase two will consider a review of antipsychotic medication and will commence
once phase one is complete and is expected to report during the summer. Both
phases include an assessment of dose regime and number of prescriptions for
information held at GP practice level which falls within the timeframe 2003 to 2013.

Analysis will consider prescribing practice, trends and conclusions which could be
drawn; broken down by age (0-4, 5 to 10, 11 to 14, 15 to 18); gender; and
deprivation using the Welsh Government's Index of Multiple Deprivation. Results will
be compared against comparable data for England.

Children and young people’s access to primary care

There has been no specific data collected in relation to access to primary care
services for young people with mental health problems to date, though work is in
hand to address this, both in relation to our Mental Health (Wales) Measure review
and the CAMHS service change programme.

In relation to the Measure review, a data collection tool has been fully operational
since October 2013, which provides health boards with an overview of their Local
Primary Mental Health Support Services (LPMHSS). The information is regularly
analysed and discussed with the NHS Delivery Unit to ascertain the robustness of
the data supplied and enable issues to be taken up with individual organisations. All
data collected is available on the ‘my local health service’ web site. Until recently
this information has not been distinguishable by age, though in response to the
findings of the Health and Social Care (HSC) Committee post-legislative scrutiny of
the Measure | have agreed that the data should be disaggregated. Information will
be collected from April/May 2015 and will be broken down by children and young
people, adults and older people, though due to the need to collate and verify the
information this will not be published until the summer 2015.

Also in response to the HSC Committee’s work | have agreed to reconvene the
Measure Part 1 (LPMHSS) Task and Finish Group to consider outcomes for those
using primary care services. The findings will be contained in the final review report
due to be published by the end of the year.

In relation to the service change programme the baseline audit of CAMHS (as
described below) will be a comprehensive audit of current CAMHS services,
including primary care mental health involving clinical consultation, primary care
mental health, Local Primary Mental Health Support Services, mainstream schools,
and intensive family support services measured against a range of domains
including care standards — so that the right expectations are defined for quality and
safety; activity- that capacity is available to meet the right demand; the resource
envelop; the model of care — the right staff, at the right place, at the right time;
operations — the interaction between patients, professionals and organisations;

Pack Page 20



review and evaluation. The completion date for this work has been agreed for 19
May 2015. The intention is to produce a Wales report and individual health board
reports on the findings. Preliminary findings will be reported at the follow-up CAMHS
conference on 22 June.

CAMHS service change work

The key themes arising from the conference on 26 February have informed a work-
plan of activity, starting with some enabling work to establish the baseline.

e Public Health Wales are undertaking a health needs assessment to consider
the evidence base of the effectiveness of interventions by reviewing activity
across the UK and internationally. Work will not be limited to specialist
CAMHS provision. It also encompasses a strategic needs assessment of
epidemiological and demographic data on the needs of Welsh young people.
Emerging findings from the three month study will be reported at a follow-up
conference on 22 June.

¢ A Collaborative National Framework was introduced on 1 April for Tier 4
(inpatient) services. This governs the commissioning of all CAMHS low
secure and acute inpatient placements, including those provided by NHS
England and the Independent Sector. Central to this is agreeing a set of
standards aimed to drive up quality in provision. Both Welsh CAMHS
inpatient units will audit provision against these standards.

¢ A baseline audit of CAMHS functions has been developed, involving the NHS
Quality Assurance and Improvement Team. Completed by all CAMHS
services during May, it will provide a comprehensive review of CAMHS
service functions across Wales; their operation; activity; and adherence to
standards. It will enable the identification of variations across Wales and
capture good practice that should be replicated elsewhere. The outcomes will
be presented at the conference in June. The aim is to minimise variations in
provision and entails agreeing a single set of outcomes for specialist CAMHS.

Overseeing activity a Programme Board will be established, meeting for the first time
in June. It will consist of senior leaders from the NHS, education, youth justice and
social services. Activity will be scrutinised by an Expert Reference Group chaired by
Sue Bailey. A number of specific work-streams are being developed comprising:

e Specialist CAMHS - building on the baseline audit described above, this
work-stream will develop a delivery and quality framework for specialist
CAMHS to achieve consistent outcomes across Wales. It will be based on
the Choice and Partnership Approach, a clinical system widely adopted by
CAMHS services. The framework will be implemented in 2016

e Early years and the wellbeing of children and young people — chaired by a
Director of Education, this work-stream will consider building early years
resilience.

Pack Page 21



e Early intervention and enhanced support — chaired by a Director of Social
Services, this group will consider the concept of early intervention for a broad
audience, exploring its application in supporting young people’s mental health.

e The needs of those with neurodevelopmental issues and Learning Disabilities
— chaired by an academic or paediatrician, this working group will consider
how best, and who is best placed, to meet the needs of these groups in a
timely and effective manner, with the appropriate level of input from specialist
CAMHS. It will link with work to refresh our autism strategy.

Maintaining partner engagement is crucial to the success of this work. The intention
is to hold a second conference on 22 June, where the outcomes of activity to date
can be reported, proposals and assumptions tested, and the next stage shaped.
Emphasising the multiagency approach, the Minister for Education and Skills has
agreed to provide the keynote address.

Recognising the important role of young people in developing and shaping future
service delivery Welsh Government has asked the NHS to ensure young people’s
involvement. This will form a series of engagement events and link to established
mechanisms for young people’s involvement locally and nationally to inform and test
priorities and actions. The NHS will work closely with a consortium of Third Sector
bodies from Hafal, Bi-polar UK, Diverse Cymru and the Mental Health Foundation to
deliver this.

Pack Page 22



	Agenda
	2 Inquiry into Supply Teaching - Evidence session 10
	CYPE(4)-15-15 - Paper 1

	3.1 Inquiry into Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services - Letter from the Minister for Health and Social Services



